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	STATE OF TENNESSEE
Department of Finance and Administration
REQUEST FOR PROPOSALS # 31701-05043
AMENDMENT # 1
FOR STATEWIDE COLLECTION AGENCY SERVICES


DATE:  October 14, 2016

RFP # 31701-05043 IS AMENDED AS FOLLOWS:


1. This RFP Schedule of Events updates and confirms scheduled RFP dates.  Any event, time, or date containing revised or new text is highlighted.

	EVENT

	TIME 
(central time zone)
	DATE


	1. RFP Issued
	
	09/15/2016

	2. Disability Accommodation Request Deadline
	2:00 p.m.
	09/21/2016

	3. Pre-response Conference
	10:00 a.m.
	09/22/2016

	4. Notice of Intent to Respond Deadline
	2:00 p.m.
	09/26/2016

	5. Written “Questions & Comments” Deadline
	2:00 p.m.
	10/05/2016

	6. State Response to Written “Questions & Comments”
	
	10/14/2016

	7. Response Deadline 
	2:00 p.m.
	10/26/2016

	8. State Completion of Technical Response Evaluations 
	
	11/09/2016

	9. State Opening & Scoring of Cost Proposals 
	2:00 p.m.
	11/10/2016

	10. State Notice of Intent to Award Released 

	2:00 p.m.
	11/16/2016 

	11. RFP Files Opened for Public Inspection
	10:00 a.m.
	11/17/2016

	12. End of Open File Period
	
	11/28/2016

	13. State sends contract to Contractor for signature 
	
	11/29/2016

	14. Contractor Signature Deadline
	2:00 p.m.
	12/06/2016



1.    State responses to questions and comments in the table below amend and clarify this RFP.

Any restatement of RFP text in the Question/Comment column shall NOT be construed as a change in the actual wording of the RFP document.


	Item#
	Question
	Response

	
	Note: in the questions that follow, any vendor's restatement of the text of the Request for Qualifications (RFQ) is for reference purposes only and shall not be construed to change the original RFQ wording.
	

	1. 
	- Do you outsource today?

- If so, what is the rate of return?

- What is the average number of accounts per month?

- What is the average balance of each account?
	-Yes
- For the term of the Contract for FY 2013 to FY 2016, the rate of return is 2.99%.  
-  For the term of the Contract for FY 2013 to FY 2016, the average number of accounts referred per month is 62.
-  For the term of the Contract for FY 2013 to FY 2016, the average account balance is approximately $2,392.

	2. 
	1. Please confirm the due date for this procurement is 10/26/2016.

2. What is the date by which you will answer these questions? 
3. What estimated or actual dollars were paid last year, last month, or last quarter to any incumbent(s)? 

4. Please describe your level of satisfaction with your current vendor(s), if applicable. 

5. What is the average age of accounts at placement (at time of award and/or on a going-forward basis), by category? 

6. What is the monthly or quarterly number of accounts expected to be placed with the vendor(s) by category? 

7. What is the monthly or quarterly dollar value of accounts expected to be placed with the vendor(s) by category? 

8. If applicable, will accounts held by any incumbent(s) or any backlog be moved to any new vendor(s) as a one-time placement at contract start up? 

9. What computer software system do you use to manage your accounts/inventory?

10. Do you have any plans of changing that system in the future, and why/why not?

11. Do you subscribe to any offset programs
	1. Confirmed.  See schedule of events due date 10/26/2016.

2. See schedule of events, State’s response to questions is 10/14/2016.

3. The following are actual dollars paid to the incumbent vendor for the following periods:
· Calendar Year 2015 - $4,278.74
· Quarter – April 2016 to June 2016 - $1,159.06
· September 2016 - $81.15

4.  We do not feel this is necessary information in order to provide a response to the RFP.

5.  Each agency maintains collection policies and procedures that dictate when an account should be turned over to a collection agency.  The age of accounts referred would vary from agency to agency.

6.  The utilization of the contract is at the sole discretion of each State agency.  We are unable to predict future referrals.

7.  The utilization of the contract is at the sole discretion of each State agency.  We are unable to predict future referrals.

8.  All accounts placed with the incumbent vendor will remain with them until the conclusion of the current contract, August 2017.  As of the contract start date, a backlog of accounts (September 2016 to December 2016) and new account referrals will be placed with the successful candidate.

9. The information you have requested is sensitive and is not required at this time to submit a detailed proposal.

10.  The information you have requested is sensitive and is not required as this time to submit a detailed proposal.

11.  Yes, the State participates in certain Federal offset programs.  See Section A.16 of the Pro Forma contract for details on participation in offset programs.

	3. 
	Please provide clarity for Section B General Qualifications & Experience Items & MBEWBE.
Will vendors receive 20 points for completing the section or will points add up to a maximum of 20 points and will MBEWBE subcontracting receive more points?
	The Contractor will be assigned a single score between 0 and 20 for the evaluation of all items included in Section B.  In no instance will a score exceeding 20 be assigned to this section.

	4. 
	Section 3.6 Additional Services – If a response offers goods or services in addition to those required by and described in this RFP, the State, at its sole discretion, may add such services to the contract awarded as a result of this RFP. Notwithstanding the foregoing, a Respondent must not propose any additional cost amounts or rates for additional goods or services.  Regardless of any additional services offered in a response, the Respondent’s Cost Proposal must only record the proposed cost as required in this RFP and must not record any other rates, amounts, or information.  

NOTICE:  If a Respondent fails to submit a Cost Proposal exactly as required, the State may deem the response non-responsive and reject it.

How does a vendor submit additional services?
	The State neither encourages nor discourages the proposal of additional services; this is a business decision for the Vendor.  However, as stated in RFP Section 3.6, if the Vendor chooses to propose additional services, the Vendor must not propose any additional cost amounts or rates for additional goods or services.  Regardless of any additional services offered in a response, the Vendor’s Cost Proposal must only record the proposed cost as required in RFP Attachment 6.3 and must not record any other rates, amounts, or information.

Additional services may be offered in the Executive Summary or a separate tab/section.  Also, if the new service is similar to one(s) being requested in the RFP, the Proposer may insert the offer of additional services in Section C – Technical Response & Evaluation Guide when responding to one of the questions.

	5. 
	1. Why is the contract out to bid at this time?

2. Is there a current contract with a vendor?

3. If yes, has the current contract gone full term?

4. If yes, who are the incumbents, and how long have the incumbents been providing the requested services?

5. Have all options to extend the current contract been exercised?

6. To what extent are these accounts owed by private consumers versus commercial businesses?

7. While section 1.1 - Statement of Procurement Purpose says many accounts have an average balance of less than $100, the Attachment 6.7 shows 2,867 accounts for a total of $6,859,428. This calculates to an average balance of $2,392. Can the State please provide the following clarifications?
· What are the individual categories of accounts that the State of Tennessee is prepared to place for collections now as a result of the contract procurement?

· What are the account volume, i.e. number of accounts and total dollars to be placed for each individual category?

· What is the average balance of accounts for each individual category?

8. What are the possible Departments of State and their categories of accounts that may be placed in the future that have not yet determined?

9. What current contingency fees or other fees are currently being billed by any incumbent(s), by category?

10. What is the average age of accounts at placement (at time of award and/or on a going-forward basis), by category?

11. What estimated or actual dollars were paid last year, last month, or last quarter to any incumbent(s)?

12. What is the monthly or quarterly number of accounts expected to be placed with the vendor(s) by category? If accounts will not be placed monthly, can you please indicate the interval of placement and the number of accounts anticipated per placement?

13. What has been the historical rate of return or liquidation rate (i.e. recovery rate) provided by any incumbent(s)?

14. What is the anticipated or expected rate of return for collections placed as a result of this procurement?

15. What recovery rate are you receiving on your placements for the past 12 months or calendar year by category?

16. If applicable, will accounts held by any incumbent(s) or any/all backlog be moved to any new vendor(s) as a one-time placement at contract start up?

17. To what extent will the location of the bidder’s call center and/or corporate headquarters have a bearing on any award(s)?

18. What commissions were paid to any vendors in 2014, 2015, and 2016 year to date?

19. Does The State of Tennessee add any late fees or other penalties to a principle balance at any stage of delinquency prior to placement for collection?

20. Does The State of Tennessee intend for collections fees to be added to each account?

21. If the answer to question 20 is yes; will The State of Tennessee add the collection fees to each account before they are placed with an agency or after they are placed with an agency? 

22. Does The State of Tennessee intend to charge interest to account balances that are delinquent and placed for collections?

23. Please provide the formula or methodology that The State of Tennessee intends to use for calculating performance? For example, gross collections as a % of gross placements, are adjustments and recalls taken out of the calculation base?

EXAMPLE:	Num. of accounts.	Dollars
Gross Placements	6,250		$2,500,000
Recalls			180		$71,400
Adjustments		17		$6,800

Adjusted Gross Collection Dollars Placed  $2,421,800
Recovered Dollars	$242,180
Recovery Rate		10%

(Note – these volume numbers are low and using whole numbers with an average balance of $400 only for the sake of simplification)

24. What level of internal efforts and collection attempts is conducted by The State of Tennessee before accounts are placed out for collections? Can you please describe what those attempts include? (i.e. how many calls, how many letters or invoices, etc.).

25. How long will the winning collection agency (bidder) be able to keep accounts once they are placed?

26. Does The State of Tennessee report these accounts to the credit bureaus internally?

27. Does The State of Tennessee intend for the collection agency(s) to have third party collection activity reported to the credit bureaus?

28. In the event an agency has been actively working an account and a debtor who has been contacted by a collection agency pays The State of Tennessee directly for any reason (what we call a direct pay); how does The State of Tennessee intend to report those payments to the agency and pay the agreed upon fee?

29. Section B – General Qualifications & Experience Items
Item B. 15 (c) – states - Estimated Participation.  Provide an estimated level of participation by business enterprises owned by minorities, women, Tennessee service-disabled veterans, and small business enterprises if a contract is awarded to the Respondent pursuant to this RFP.  

· Is there a set goal for Minority / Women Owned / MBE business participation for this RFP and subsequent contract award?
	1. End of current contract.

2. Yes

3. The contract with the Current Vendor is set to expire August 2017 to allow for collection of accounts previously referred.  All accounts as of the new Contract Start date will be referred to the successful candidate.

4. The information you have requested is sensitive and is not required at this time to submit a detailed proposal.

5. Yes
6.  Each agency maintains the information internally on accounts that are turned over to the collection agency and there is no cumulative data available.  

7.  The purpose of the statement included in Section 1.1 was to emphasize that many of the accounts referred will be small, and the $100 figure does not represent the average balance of accounts referred.   The calculated average account balance of $2,392 is based on the balance of actual account referrals.

· The utilization of the contract is at the sole discretion of each State agency; thus we are unable to predict future referrals.

· The utilization of the contract is at the sole discretion of each State agency; thus we are unable to predict future referrals.

· The average balance of accounts for each individual category is:
· Unpaid Licensing and Permit Fees – $2,230
· A/R and Penalties/Fees – $1,880
· Accounts Receivable – $1,392
· Administrative Penalties – $5,222
· Defaults – $10,674
· Property Loss – $3,130
· Business Loans – $41,376

8. Utilization of this contract is open to all State Agencies and Departments to assist with collection efforts of any category balance due.  The Directory of State Agencies can be found at:
http://www.tn.gov/directory.

9.  The current Contractor bills a Collection Agency Charge to the State for all successful collections regardless of the category of the receivable. 

10.  Each agency maintains collection policies and procedures that dictate when an account should be turned over to a collection agency.  The age of accounts referred would vary from agency to agency.

11.  The following are actual dollars paid to the incumbent vendor for the following periods:
· Calendar Year 2015 - $4,278.74
· Quarter – April 2016 to June 2016 - $1,159.06
· September 2016 - $81.15

12.  The utilization of the contract is at the sole discretion of each State agency; thus we are unable to predict future referrals.  Currently, accounts are referred by most agencies monthly.  Some agencies refer more frequently.

13. The historical rate of return is 2.99%.

14.  There is no anticipated or expected rate of return required by the Contract.  

15.  The following rate of recovery rates for the Calendar Year 2015 are:
· Property Loss – 0.17%
· Accounts Receivable – 2.72%
· Unpaid Licensing and Permit Fees – 3.94%
· Administrative Penalties  – 0.45%
· Accounts Receivable and Penalties/Fees – 0.42%
16.  All accounts placed with the incumbent vendor will remain with them until the conclusion of the current contract, August 2017.  As of the contract start date, a backlog of accounts (September 2016 to December 2016) and new account referrals will be placed with the successful candidate.

17.  RFP Attachment 6.2. –Section B and Section C provides details on how the Technical Response will be evaluated as well as the evaluation factor assigned to each item.

18.  The following amounts have been paid to the current Contractor:
· 2014 - $8,145.88
· 2015 - $4,278.74
· 2016 - $1,792.36

19.  The State reserves the right to charge State Collection Fees which include interest, service charges, collection costs, and other fees.  It is at the discretion of each agency whether to charge these fees.  See Section A.7 and A.15 of the Pro forma Contract.

20.  If Collection Fees are assessed, it is the intention of the State for these amounts to be added to the account on which they are assessed. 
 
21.  Any Collection Fees assessed with be added to the account by the State before they are referred to the Contractor.  In the case where interest is accruing on a balance due, the Contractor is responsible for updating the accrued interest as required by Section A.15 of the Pro Forma Contract.

22. The State reserves the right to charge State Collection Fees which include interest, service charges, collection costs, and other fees.  It is at the discretion of each agency whether to a charge these fees.  See Section A.7 and A.15 of the Pro forma Contract.

23.  The State will calculate performance using the following methodology:
· Amount Collected /Net Placement = Rate of Recovery 
· Net Placement is defined as all placements referred to the Contractor less any adjustments or recalls.

24.  General collection procedures vary from agency to agency, including but not limited to phone calls and collection letters.  The Department of Finance and Administration Policy 23 provides general guidelines related to collection efforts and can be found at:
http://www.tn.gov/assets/entities/finance/attachments/policy23.pdf.

25.  Accounts referred will remain with the Contractor for a period not to exceed one year unless there is documented evidence of payments being regularly received, other evidence of collectability, or as mutually agreed between the Contractor and the State.  See Section A.16 of the Pro forma Contract. 

26.  The determination as to whether information concerning the debtor is reported to any credit bureau is made by each of the State agencies.  The State agency will also determine if the Contractor or agency personnel will be responsible for making such reports.

27.  The determination as to whether information concerning the debtor is reported to any credit bureau is made by each of the State agencies.    The State agency will also determine if the Contractor or agency personnel will be responsible for making such reports.  See Section A.14 of the Pro forma Contract.
28.  The State shall notify the Contractor within five (5) business days of any amounts received directly by the State agency as a result of the Contractor’s efforts.  See Section A.10 of the Pro Forma Contract.  Additional language was added to this section to clarify that the Contractor shall include the applicable Collection Agency Charge in the monthly invoice and the State shall remit payment in accordance with the monthly invoicing process as described in Section C.5 of the Pro Forma Contract.

29.  There is no specific goal for this RFP.  However, there is a state-wide goal of approximately 11% diversity participation across the State agencies for all procurements.

	6. 
	Attachment 6.2 Section B Question B.14:

Whom does the State consider to be sub-contractors? For example, would a skip tracer or letter vendor be considered sub-contractors?

General question:

What treatment by the State do the accounts undergo before they are turned over to a private collection agency?
	The State considers a sub-contractor as anyone that will provide goods or services to the State during the contract term.  The Contractors shall be the prime contractor and shall be responsible for all work provided/performed.
General collection procedures vary from agency to agency, including but not limited to phone calls and collection letters.  The Department of Finance and Administration Policy 23 provides general guidelines related to collection efforts and can be found at:
http://www.tn.gov/assets/entities/finance/attachments/policy23.pdf.

	7. 
	1. 3.1.1.2. specifies that RFPs must be written in 12-point font. Are vendors permitted to use larger fonts for headers and smaller fonts for tables? Or is everything required to be in 12-point font?

1. Can the State provide any information regarding the forward flow of assignments after the backlog of accounts has been distributed? 
	1. Everything is to be in 12-point font.

2. The utilization of the contract is at the sole discretion of each State agency.  We are unable to predict future referrals.




2. Delete RFP # 31701-05043 in its entirety, and replace it with RFP # 31701-00543, Release # 2, attached to this amendment.  Revisions of the original RFP document are emphasized within the new release.  Any sentence or paragraph containing revised or new text is highlighted.

RFP Amendment Effective Date.  The revisions set forth herein shall be effective upon release.  All other terms and conditions of this RFP not expressly amended herein shall remain in full force and effect. 

RFP # 31701-05043 – Amendment # 1		Page 1 of 7
image1.jpeg




